# **RiskyProject Enterprise 7.2**

**Project Risk Management Software** 

## **RiskyProject Enterprise User Guide**



## Intaver Institute Inc.

www.intaver.com email: info@intaver.com

#### COPYRIGHT

#### Copyright © 2022 Intaver Institute. All rights reserved.

The information in this document is subject to change without notice. The software described in this document is furnished under a license agreement. This software may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of such agreement. It is against the law to copy the software on any medium except as specifically allowed in the license agreement. No part of this document may be reproduced or transmitted in any form, or by any means, electronic or mechanical, including photocopying and recording, for any purpose without the express written permission of Intaver Institute.

RiskyProject<sup>TM</sup> and Event Chain Methodology<sup>TM</sup> are trademarks of Intaver Institute.

Microsoft® is a registered trademark of Microsoft Corporation. Windows®, and Project®, are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

All other names and trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

# Contents

Chapter 1: Introduction to RiskyProject Enterprise	5
About RiskyProject Enterprise	6
RiskyProject Installation and Configuration	6
About RiskyProject License Types	7
About This Document	7
Updating Your License	7
Logging on to RiskyProject Enterprise	7
Switching Between Enterprise and Standalone Desktop Configurations	8
Chapter 2: Managing Projects	9
About Organizing Your Project Portfolio	10
Creating a Portfolio Hierarchy	10
Opening Projects	10
About the Current Project	11
Refreshing the Hierarchy	12
Locking and Unlocking Projects	12
Modifying Projects	13
Closing a Project	13
Saving a Project	13
Creating a New Project without a Placeholder	14
Importing a Project File to the Database	14
Importing an XML or XER Files	15
Importing Envision Schedules	15
Creating projects from Microsoft Project	16
Exporting a Project	16
Exporting a Project Schedule in XML Format	17
Copying and Pasting a Project	17
Deleting a Project	18
About the Project Views	19
About the Portfolio Gantt View	19
About the Risked Projects View	20
About the Project Portfolio View	21
Viewing Project Details in the Portfolio Views	21
About Project Priorities	23
About Project Risk Scores and Rankings	24
How Cost and Schedule Risk Scores Are Calculated	24
How Non-Schedule and Cost Risk Scores Are Calculated	24
RISK Meters	25
About Portfolio Options and Preferences	26
About Portfolio Options	27
How Portfolio Options Are Applied	27
Individual RISK Matrixes for Different Projects of Users	27
About KISK VISIDIIITY (Approval) Kules	28

About Preferences	29
Chapter 3: Managing Risks, Mitigation and Response Plans, Incidents	31
Introduction to Managing Enterprise Risks	32
How to Setup Risk Register	33
About Risk Visibility and Risk Assignment	36
Assigning Risks to Projects	37
Changing Risk Visibility	38
Automatically Assign Risks to Upper Levels of the Hierarchy	39
About Hidden Risks	41
About the Risk Approval Process	42
Deleting Risk Assignments	42
Calculating Risk Probability and Impacts	43
Locking and Unlocking Risks	43
About Cost of Risk Calculations	43
About Risk Documents	47
Adding a Document to a Risk	48
Risk Register and Organizational Units	49
Managing Mitigation and Response Plans	51
Managing Incidents	52
Enabling Incident Register	52
Incident Classification	52
About Incident Properties	53
Customizing the default incident properties	53
Incident ID Settings	53
Viewing the Incident Register	54
Viewing the Incident Statistics Chart	56
Editing Incident Information	57
Chapter 4: User Management and RiskyProject Configuration	59
About User Management	60
About Roles	60
About Permissions	60
Notification Manager	62
Configuring Notification Messages	62
Viewing Sent Notification E-mails	63
Configuring E-mails	63

# Chapter 1: Introduction to RiskyProject Enterprise

## About RiskyProject Enterprise

RiskyProject is a project risk management software. RiskyProject can be configured as standalone desktop software, which saves files to the set of files for each project, or enterprise software, which saves data in the database. As the same installation package is used for both desktop and enterprise versions of the software, switching from one version to another is quick and easy. You can switch from one configuration to another using the RiskyProject License Wizard. RiskyProject Enterprise is a flexible project portfolio risk analysis and management system.

The enterprise system is comprised of three main components:

**RiskyProject Server**: The server contains the RiskyProject database. For the current version of RiskyProject, the server can be run on a Microsoft SQL Server. The database contains all project and risk data including Monte Carlo simulation results.

**RiskyProject Enterprise Desktop Client**: The enterprise client is required to perform quantitative risk analysis and management. The client used with enterprise software can be the Professional, Lite, or Risk Register modules. If enterprise client is RiskyProject Professional or RiskyProject Lite, the enterprise client includes three Portfolio views: Risked Projects view, Portfolio Gantt view and Project Portfolio view. These are portfolio-level views of project schedules and costs.



## **RiskyProject Installation and Configuration**

Before you start working with RiskyProject Enterprise, the RiskyProject database must be configured and user names, passwords and portfolio settings must be defined. Please read the *RiskyProject Enterprise Administrator's Guide* for additional information.

## About RiskyProject License Types

When you start RiskyProject Professional and RiskyProject Lite for the first time on your computer, you will be prompted to define the license type or mode of RiskyProject operation. When installing RiskyProject, you may choose between three installation modes:

- Enterprise Client Mode: RiskyProject will be connected to the database. In this mode, you can save projects to the database or in a file format. In addition, this mode contains additional views (Portfolio Gantt, Project Portfolio and Risked Projects) for managing and analyzing your project portfolio. You must have an enterprise client license to enable this mode.
- **Regular Desktop Mode**: the desktop license is not connected to a database (standalone RiskyProject). Projects can only be saved in RiskyProject's file format (\*.alm).
- **Trial Mode:** the trial license is a full version of the desktop license that can be used for 30 days, at which time you must enter a license code to continue using the software.

## **About This Document**

Installed versions of RiskyProject Professional, RiskyProject Lite and RiskyProject Risk Register can be connected to the database or run as standalone desktop applications.

This document describes only specific features of the RiskyProject Enterprise desktop client (features which apply when RiskyProject is connected to the database). For all other features, which are identical in Enterprise client mode and Regular desktop mode, please consult with the *RiskyProject User Guide* or *Getting Started with RiskyProject Guide*.

## **Updating Your License**

If you have recently purchased or upgraded your license, you must update it.

#### To update your license type:

- 1. Click the **Tools** tab. In the RiskyProject Configuration group, click **Update RiskyProject License**. The License Wizard opens.
- 2. Select the license type (**Trial**, **Regular** or **Enterprise**). If you have already activated your license, only the alternate license type will be available.
- 3. Click Next.
- 4. If you selected **Regular Desktop** license and did not validate your license code on your computer before, input your new license code and click **Next**.

### Logging on to RiskyProject Enterprise

To logon to RiskyProject Enterprise, you must have a database connection set up.

#### To logon:

- 1. Launch RiskyProject. The Logon window opens.
- 2. Enter in your name and password.
- 3. Click OK.

When you logon to RiskyProject for the first time, your system Administrator will issue you a temporary password. You will need to change this password after logon in the subsequent dialog.



When logging on to RiskyProject Enterprise, you may switch your desktop or trial license by clicking on **Start regular desktop license (no database)**.

# Switching Between Enterprise and Standalone Desktop Configurations

You may switch between Enterprise and Standalone desktop configurations of RiskyProject, and vice versa, at any moment. To do so, use the **Update RiskyProject License** button under the Tools pane on the toolbar.



- If you switch from **Enterprise** configuration to **standalone desktop** configuration you must have a license for RiskyProject standalone on your computer. If an Enterprise configuration is saved in the database, the standalone license will be saved in the Windows registry.
- If you switch from standalone desktop configuration to enterprise configuration, you need to define database connection properties in the manner outlined in the *RiskyProject Enterprise Administrator's Guide*.
- If you are in Enterprise mode, you may want to connect to a different database. Click on **Update RiskyProject License** and select **Enterprise: update database parameters.** You will be prompted to define database connection properties.

You may switch from Enterprise configuration to standalone desktop configuration by clicking on **Start** regular desktop license (no database) using the RiskyProject Enterprise logon dialog.

# **Chapter 2: Managing Projects**

## **About Organizing Your Project Portfolio**

You may organize a portfolio similarly to how you organize a project, using summary tasks and sub tasks. In the Portfolio views, programs are represented as summary projects and their data is the rollup of all projects listed under the specific program.

## **Creating a Portfolio Hierarchy**

By default, RiskyProject Enterprise will "add" all projects in your database to the Project Portfolio. All projects will be considered to be part of your portfolio, but will not be organized in a hierarchical structure: Portfolio > Programs > Projects. Your portfolio can be organized to reflect any types of business units, regions, project types etc. If your projects are not organized or you are adding a new project to the database, you will need to organize your Portfolio.

#### To create a project or program:

- 1. Click the **Projects** tab. In the **Project Views** group, click any project view. In these views, you will be able to see all your projects. In a new database, there will be no projects shown in the views.
- 2. To begin building the hierarchy and adding projects, first create a project. This will serve as a starting point to begin building the hierarchy. If the project contains any tasks or resources, it will be an actual project. Otherwise it will be a project placeholder. Project placeholders will not have a Gantt bar associated with them in any **Project** views: **Portfolio Gantt, Risked Project,** and **Project Portfolio** views. To add the initial project, click in the top row and type in a descriptive name.



- 3. To add the project to the program, right-click on the project directly below the Program and choose **Indent**.
- 4. To create an empty row, right-click on the Project ID and click on Insert Project.
- 5. By repeating these steps, you can create a hierarchy which will include multiple programs and projects.

## **Opening Projects**

#### To open a project:

- 1. Select the project in one of the Project views.
- 2. Click the Projects tab, and in the Projects group click Open Project or,
  - Double click on Project ID or
  - Right click on Project ID and click on **Open Project** on the shortcut menu

The project will open in the **Schedule > Project Views**.

You can open summary projects or subprojects as long as you have permissions to do so. However, if you open a summary project, you cannot add a project schedule or resources. You may only manage risks associated with the summary project.



If you open a placeholder project, it will not have any tasks or resources associated with it. Once you add at least one task, resource or risk, it will become an active project. Each active project is represented by a Gantt bar in the **Portfolio Gantt** view. A project can contain qualititative risks.

## **About the Current Project**

Once you open a project it becomes the current project, and schedule or risk data that is added, modified or deleted is added at the current project level. The current project is indicated by either a blue bar for project or red bar for summary project at the top of the RiskyProject workspace. The current project is indicated with *italics* and an arrow next to the project name as in the below example:

Product Development Schedule

A red asterix symbol indicates that the project is currently being edited.



If the **Current Project** bar is not visible, then you are currently viewing the Portfolio. This is especially important if you are in the **Risks** views, as this would mean you are looking at the Portfolio level risk views.

) 🖨 = 🗟 🗦			RiskyProje	ect Professional		– 🗆 ×
FILE * PROJECTS	SCHEDULE RISKS INCIDENT	S ANALYSIS	TRACKING	REI Current Project	ct Project Planning	<u>, 2 ⊡</u>
Image: Constraint of the const	B Z Ψ ⇒ □ hule and Calendar B Z Ψ ⇒ □ B Z Ψ B Z Φ B Z Φ	Project Res View	sources Cost and Income	Work Calculate	Mont Courtine	Project Settings     Set       Project Options     Set       % Format Ga     ar       Settings and     s       Baselines
Workflow X	Project Name	Priority Dur	Start	Finish %	Blue bar indicates the	
Projects  Portfolio Gantt  Risked Projects  Project Portfolio  Schedule  Project View  Risked Resources	1     Image: Software Inception       2     Image: Business Plan       3     Image: Requirement Gather       4     Image: Project Planning       5     Image: Requirement Gather       6     Image: Requirement Planoit       7     Image: Requirement Gather       8     Image: Requirement Planoit	81 days           100%         21 days           100%         33 days           100%         32 days           100%         41 days	07/01/16 00:00 07/01/16 00:00 08/01/16 00:00 09/01/16 08:00 10/11/16 08:00 10/11/16 08:00	10/21/16 17:00 07/31/16 00:00 09/15/16 00:00 10/14/16 17:00 12/13/16 17:00 04 12/06/16 17:00	Red bar indicates a current summary project	Click here to close project
Cost and Income	An arrow next to th project name indica current project	ates days	12/13/16 08:00 12/13/16 08:00	01/17/17 17:00 05 01/16/17 17:00 05 04/28/17 00:00 05	96	
Risks -	13 Implementation and [	100% 34 days	03/13/17 00:00	04/28/17 00:00 0	%	
<ul> <li>Risk Register</li> <li>Risk Dashboard</li> <li>Risk Report</li> <li>Risk Assignments</li> <li>Drag N' Drop Risk</li> <li>Mitigation, Response</li> </ul>	14 Marketing: Trade Sh	80% 27 days	03/22/17 00:00	04/28/17 00:0C 04	<b>%</b>	
Ready				Us	ser: Admin Portfolio Gantt CAP	NUM SCRL Sat, Apr 09,2022 10:53:47 PM

## **Refreshing the Hierarchy**

The hierarchy will be read from the database each time you open any Project view: Project Gantt, Risked Projects, or Project Portfolio. If another concurrent user has modified the hierarchy while you are in any project view, you may need to refresh the project portfolio.

#### To refresh the project hierarchy:

- 1. Click the **Projects** tab.
- 2. Click Refresh Portfolio.

## Locking and Unlocking Projects

Only one user can open a project at a time. Projects will be locked for all other users if somebody opens a project. Locked projects are indicated by an icon 🖀 next to the project name. A project will be automatically unlocked when a project is closed.

If a project is locked it can be unlocked by an administrator. As an example, it may be necessary to do so if a user left the project open for a long time period.

#### To unlock a project or group of projects:

- 1. Click the **Projects** tab. In the **Project Views** group, click any **Project** view.
- 2. Select the project you would like to unlock.
- 3. Right-click on the project ID and from the shortcut menu, click Unlock Project.

### **Modifying Projects**

To modify a project schedule, you must open it. If the project has risks and uncertainties, they will be reflected in the project portfolio as soon the project is saved. In particular, risk scores will be re-calculated and the Project Gantt chart will be updated. Project names and project priorities can be updated without opening the project. You may be required to modify the project start time.

#### To modify a project start time:

- 1. Open the project.
- 2. Click the Schedule tab, and in the Settings and Options group, click Project Settings.
- 3. Click on the **Project Start Time** box. A calendar opens.
- 4. Select the new project start time from the calendar.
- 5. Click **OK**. Close the project and the new start time will be reflected in the project hierarchy.

## **Closing a Project**

#### To close the Current Project:

- 1. Click on the X on the Current Project bar at the top of RiskyProject workspace,
- 2. Click the **Projects** tab and then **Close Project**, or
- 3. Right-click on the project ID and from the shortcut menu, click Close Project.

If the project has not been saved, you will be prompted to save changes.

## **Saving a Project**

You can add or save an imported project to the database.

#### To save a project:

- 1. In the **Projects** view, select the project that you want to save or select an empty project row.
- 2. In the **Projects** group, click **Save** or **Save As**. The **Save Project** dialog box opens. The Save Project dialog box allows you to insert the project into your portfolio hierarchy at any level.

Save Project				<u> </u>
	Select a	fter which project you	want to insert your project:	
1			Project Name	<b>_</b>
	1	🖃 🧊 Portfolio 1		
	2	Project1		
	3	Project2		
	4			
No. 111	5	🖃 🧊 Portfolio 1		
	6	Project3		
	7			
1	8	Project4		
				-
	•	1		
INA R	Project	Name:		_
	Projec	t3		
				_
-		Save	Cancel	

- 3. From the hierarchy, select the position where you want to insert or save the project. You can rename the project if required in the **Project Name** box.
- 4. Click Save.

## Creating a New Project without a Placeholder

If you don't have a current project opened, you can create one by adding tasks to the **Project View** or resources to the **Resource View**. A new current project will be created automatically and added to the bottom of the hierarchy.

) 🖨 = 🗟 🗦		RiskyPro	ject Professional	– 🗆 X
FILE * PROJECTS	SCHEDULE RISKS INCIDENTS	5 ANALYSIS TRACKING	REF Current Project: Project1	······································
Image: Constraint of the second s	B Z U ⇒ 0 ulue and Calendar B C U ⇒ 0 B C U B C U	Project Resources Cost and View Schedule Views	Month Q Q Q Work Calculate A 2 Zoom and Find	Schedule Diagnostics Settings a Settings a Schedule Schedule Schedule Schedule Schedule Schedule Schedule Settings a Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Set Set
Workflow X	Project Name	Priority Dur Start	Finish % done	2017
Projects 🔺	1 🖃 词 Software Inception	81 days 07/01/16 00:00	10/21/16 17:00 0%	When you start entering task
Portfolio Gantt	2 📃 Business Plan	100% 21 days 07/01/16 00:00	07/31/16 00:00 0%	or resource information, the
Risked Projects	3 Requirement Gatheri	100% 33 days 08/01/16 00:00	09/15/16 00:00 0%	new project will become the
Project Portfolio	4 Project Planning	100% 32 days 09/01/16 08:00	10/14/16 17:00 0%	current project
Schedule	5			
Project View	6 - Construct Design     7 - Product Design	46 days 10/11/16 08:00	12/13/16 17:00 0%	
<ul> <li>Resources</li> <li>Cost and Income</li> </ul>	Red star indicates t is currently being e	hat project dited	01/17/17 17:00 0% 01/16/17 17:00 0%	
🗱 Work	11			
Risks 🔺	12 E a fransition	34 days 03/13/17 00:00	04/28/17 00:00 0%	
Risk Register	13 plementation and [	100% 34 days 03/13/17 00:00 80% 27 days 03/22/17 00:00	04/28/17 00:00 0%	
🚔 Risk Dashboard	15	00% 2/ days 03/22/1/ 00.00	04/2017 00.00	
🚺 Risk Report	16 🍠 Project1	100%	0%	
Risk Assignments				
🚺 Drag N' Drop Risk	The new project	will be added		
📣 Mitigation, Response	to the bottom of t	he hierarchy.		
Ready			User: Admin Portfolio Gantt	CAP NUM SCRL Sat, Apr 09,2022 10:56:32 PM

You are also able to rename or save this project to a different position in the project hierarchy.

## Importing a Project File to the Database

Importing projects allows you to import RiskyProject project files into your database and portfolio. These files are created by RiskyProject when using the standalone desktop mode.

#### To import a file:

- 1. Click on File -> Import -> RiskyProject (ALM) file....
- 2. You can also click the **Projects** tab. In the **Project Views** group, click any **Project** view. In the **Export/Import** group, click the **Import from file**. The Open dialog box opens.
- 3. Navigate to the file (\*.alm) and click **Open**. RiskyProject will check if the project file has any risks or mitigation plans. If it does the **Insert risks and mitigation plans from file to Risk Register** dialog box opens. This dialog box allows you to add, ignore or match the risks or

plans to existing ones (rename). If you do not want to use this process click **Skip**. If the project has a schedule you will also be prompted if you would like to run a simulation.

- 4. Select the hierarchy location where you want to place the project. You can rename the project if required in the **Project Name** box.
- 5. Select the hierarchy location where you want to place the project. You can rename the project in the **Project Name** box.
- 6. If you select project, which already exists in the hierarchy, you have an option to overwrite existing project or insert project after the selected project.
- 7. If you choose **Overwrite** existing file, you have an option to apply risks and uncertainties to the imported project from the project you overwrite. For example, you import *Project A* and overwrite *Project B*. *Project B* has risks assigned to certain tasks and uncertainties in task duration. You have an option to apply risks assignment and uncertainties from *Project B* to *Project A* based on Task unique ID (GUID field). Only duration and start time uncertainties will be applied. Fixed cost, work, income and lag uncertainties will be not applied to imported project.

### Importing an XML or XER Files

Importing xml files allows you to import supported xml project files (Microsoft Project xml schema) as well as Primavera P6 XER files into your database and portfolio. The XML/XER file import procedure is the same as Import a Project File, but risks and mitigation plans import step is omitted.

#### To import an XML or XER file:

- 1. Click on File -> Import -> Microsoft Project (XML)... or Oracle Primavera (XER)....
- 2. For XML file import you can also click the **Projects** tab. In the **Project Views** group, click any **Project** view. In the **Export/Import** group, click the **Import from XML**. The Open dialog box opens.
- 3. Navigate to the file (\*.xer or \*.xml) and click Open.
- 4. Select the hierarchy location where you want to place the project. You can rename the project if required in the **Project Name** box.
- 5. If you select project, which already exists in the hierarchy, you have an option to overwrite existing project or insert project after the selected project.
- 6. If you choose **Overwrite** existing file, you have an option to apply risks and uncertainties to the imported project from the project you overwrite.

### **Importing Envision Schedules**

You can import schedule from Envision database. Connection to Envision database can be configured in Preferences dialog (see **About Preferences**).

#### To import an Envision Schedule:

- 1. Click on File -> Import -> Envision Schedule....
- 2. If you did not configure a connection in Preferences dialog, you can configure it here.
- 3. Select project from Envision database and click OK.

- 4. Select the hierarchy location where you want to place the project. You can rename the project if required in the **Project Name** box.
- 5. If you select project, while already exists in the hierarchy, you have an option to overwrite existing project or insert project after the selected project.
- 6. If you choose **Overwrite** existing file, you have an option to apply risks and uncertainties to the imported project from the project you overwrite. The procedure is described in **Import a Project File**.

## **Creating projects from Microsoft Project**

If you are using the **RiskyProject Add-in** for Microsoft Project and want to move the project data to RiskyProject Enterprise, you will be required to logon to the RiskyProject database in which you want to add the project. You can then add the project to your portfolio. You may rename or save this project to a different place at any point in the project hierarchy.



If your schedule from Microsoft Project is currently in the database, it will remain linked to your Microsoft Project file; therefore, if you make any changes to the schedule in Microsoft Project it will be reflected in the schedule within RiskyProject.

## **Exporting a Project**

You can export your project files to the RiskyProject file format (\*.alm).

#### To export a project to a file:

- 1. Click the **Projects** tab. In the **Project Views** group, click any **Project** view.
- 2. Select the project you want to export to a file.
- 3. In the **Export/Import** group, click the **Export to File** button. The **Save As** dialog box opens.
- 4. Navigate to the folder to which you want to save the file.
- 5. Enter a name in the **File Name** box and click **Save**.

## **Exporting a Project Schedule in XML Format**

You can export your project files to the Microsoft Project xml file format (\*.xml)

#### To export a project as xml:

- 1. Click the **Projects** tab. In the **Project Views** group, click any **Portfolio** view.
- 2. Select the project you want to export to a file.
- 3. In the **Export/Import** group, click the **Export to XML** button. The **Export Schedule** dialog box opens. You can select either the original schedule or results of the Monte Carlo simulation.

Export Schedule	X
*	Oeterministic Schedule
	C Low Results
	C Base Results
	C High Results
a state of the	C Results based of percentile P 70
ALL GROUPS	,
	OK Cancel

4. Select the schedule results option that you would like to export and click **OK**.

## **Copying and Pasting a Project**

You can copy projects and paste projects in your portfolio.

#### To copy a project:

- 1. In any **Project** view, select the project that you want to copy.
- 2. Right-click and choose Copy from the shortcut.
- 3. Select a row in your portfolio where you want to place the copied file.
- 4. Right-click and choose **Paste**. The copy of the file is placed in the new location.
  - If you select a row with a project in it, the project will be inserted above the selected row. It will not overwrite the existing project.
  - By default, the copy of the project will have the same name. You should rename the copy.



You can use Copy and Paste to move projects to a different location in the hierarchy.

## **Deleting a Project**

Deleting a project deletes it from both the hierarchy and the database.

#### To delete a project:

- 1. In any **Project** view, select the project that you want to delete.
- 2. Right-click and from the shortcut menu choose **Delete**. The project will be deleted from the database.



• You must have appropriate permissions to be able to delete a project.

## **About the Project Views**

The desktop client for RiskyProject Enterprise comes with 3 additional views:

- Portfolio Gantt
- Risked Projects
- Project Portfolio

## About the Portfolio Gantt View

The Portfolio Gantt view is a Gantt chart view of your project portfolio. In the Portfolio Hierarchy you can view your programs and projects. If you have permission, you can also modify the hierarchy by adding, deleting, moving etc. programs or projects.



Double-click on a Gantt bar to view detailed information about a selected project. See **Viewing Project Details in the Portfolio Views** for more information.

Using Portfolio Gantt view you can visualize:

- Projects with risks and uncertainties alongside original project schedules
- Low and high project durations
- Project performance tracking bars will be shown
- Low and high project results, which may be shown separately

#### To view the different settings listed above on the Portfolio Gantt view:

- Right-click on the Gantt chart
- Make a selection from the shortcut menu: show current schedule, show both Low/High Results, etc.



Low and high results are associated with the particular percentile; definition of low and high results can be changed in Portfolio Options (Calculation tab). See About Portfolio Options and Preferences for more information.

## About the Risked Projects View

The Risked Project view shows the relative risk associated with a project versus project duration or total project cost. The risk is expressed as:

- project standard deviation of task duration or cost
- maximum or minimum values
- ranges: the difference between maximum and minimum values
- percentiles, or Project Value at Risk (PVatR<sup>TM</sup>).

In a well-balanced portfolio, different projects will have similar levels of risk. However, if the relative risk associated with a project is higher than similar projects, the project should be flagged for additional analysis. Alternatively, if a project has less relative risk, it may represent an opportunity where additional cost or schedule risk could be transferred to it to mitigate projects with higher risk in your portfolio.

Risked Projects view is implemented similarly to Risk Chart view for the project schedule. Risk Chart view shows a bubble chart for the tasks, while Risked Projects view shows a bubble chart for the projects. To read more about how to view and use the Risked Projects view, see **Risk** Chart in *RiskyProject User Guide*.

Project Value at Risk (PVatR<sup>TM</sup>) concept was developed by Nicki Kons. See Kons, N. 2016. *PVaR - Project Value at Risk*. CreateSpace Independent Publishing Platform (April 28, 2016).



## About the Project Portfolio View

The Project Portfolio view is a table, which displays the results of a probabilistic analysis of the projects in your portfolio. This view can be used for both analysis and reporting. You can modify the data that appears in this view by adding or hiding columns.

	Project Name	Manager	Modified	Dur	Cost	Pri	Dur	Cost	Start	Finish	% done	Start Low	Sta
1	🖃 🚞 Montney Developme		05/04/10	Copy C	olumn				06/13/16 08:00	04/27/22 16:01	3%		
2	📃 Drilling Montney BC I		07/26/10	Insert C	olumn	Before.			09/15/16 08:00	11/23/16 17:00	0%	09/15/16 08:00	09/1:
3				Insert C	olumn	After							
4	🖃 🚞 Montney Sunrise		06/11/10	Modify	Colum	n			06/13/16 08:00	04/22/19 17:00	0%		
5	Sunrise Explorati		12/12/1	Hide Co	olumn				06/13/16 08:00	05/05/17 17:00	0%	06/13/16 08:00	06/1
6	Development		12/12/1	1.23	0.98	70%	15.19 mon	\$1,406,58	07/03/17 08:00	08/30/18 14:43	0%	07/03/17 08:00	07/0
7	Deliniation		12/2 17:49	1.04	1.00	60%	12.25 mon		07/09/18 08:00	06/14/19 17:00	0%	07/09/18 08:00	07/0
8													
9	🖃 🔚 Montney Parkland		6 <b>16:</b> 38				37.59 moi		06/11/19 08:00	04/27/22 16:01	0%		
10	Parkla Add o	r hide col		1.26	1.00	100%	11.75 mon		06/11/19 08:00	05/04/20 17:00	0%	06/11/19 08:00	06/1
11	Devel		annio	1.24	0.96	100%	14.29 mon	\$1,432,370	04/13/20 08:00	05/17/21 14:41	0%	04/13/20 08:00	04/1
12	Deliniation		12/12/16 20:30	1.10	1.00	100%	12.25 mon		07/13/21 08:00	06/20/22 17:00	0%	07/13/21 08:00	07/1
13	Construction of <u>c</u>		12/12/16 20:33	1.15	1.00	100%	15 mon		12/14/20 08:00	02/04/22 17:00	0%	12/14/20 08:00	12/1
14													
15	🖃 🚞 Infrastructure Dev		12/23/16 17:47				35.3 mon		07/17/19 08:00	03/30/22 16:33	10%		
16	Pipeline Construc		12/23/16 17:57		1.00	100%	35.25 mon		07/17/19 08:00	03/29/22 17:00	10%	07/17/19 08:00	07/1
17	New Project		12/23/16 17:49			100%					0%		
													-
•	1												•

## **Viewing Project Details in the Portfolio Views**

You can view general project information as well as the simulation results for projects .

#### To view project details:

- Right-click on the **Project ID** and select **Project Details** from the shortcut menu. Double-click on a project's Gantt bar on a **Project Gantt** view, or
- Click the **Projects** tab and then **Main Project Information**.

FILE *	PROJECTS	SCHEDULE	RISKS INCI	DENTS	ANALYSIS	S TRA	CKING	REPORT	то	OLS		
Paste	∦ Cut È Copy ∽ Undo	Open Save Project Project	⇒ Indent & Outdent	Portfolio Gantt	Risked Projects	Project Portfolio	Four M	onth 🝷	Import from file	Export to file file Import from XML file Export to XML	Main Project Information	Portfolio Options
Cli	oboard	Projects	Structure	Pro	oject View	/S	Z	oom		Export/Import		Portfolio Settings

The general project information for the selected project will open.

Inmor	Development			Priority:	100% -	TTTTT		TTTTT A
escription:			Proje	ect Risk Score N	1eters	2		2 3
lanager:						E Cost S	core J E O	ration Score
ompany:				Project Created: 12	2/12/16 20:26	0.9		1.24
IVISION.				Project Modified: 1.	2/12/16 20:29			
Dieke	Cur Schedule	Start Time	14 29 5	Duration	Proje	ct Finish Time	Tota \$1,432,370	I Cost
J RISKS	L ow	04/13/20 08:00	14.251	000	05/26/21 16:4	8	0. 1	
(ith Risks	Base	04/13/20 08:00	16.35 n	non	07/13/21 17:0	0	Simulation result	s for
	High	04/13/20 08:00	18.53 r	non	09/13/21 13:0	4	selected project	
125 - 100 - 75 -		24% .18% .12% .6%	60 - 40 - 20 -		15% 12% 9% 6% 3% 0%	80 - 60 - 40 - 20 - 0 - 10.00 12	50 15.00 17.50 2	209 169 129 8% 4% 0% 0%
50 - 25 - 0 - 750,000.0	0 1,000,000.00	1,500,000.00						
50 - 25 - 0 - 750,000.0	0 1,000,000.00	1,500,000.00 Cost (\$)	Apr May	Jun Jul Aug Sep Od	t Nov De		Durati	on (mon)



- Double-clicking on any chart will bring up the detailed view for each chart.
- You may update priorities, project name, description, and other project information here.

## **About Project Priorities**

The Priority field indicates the level of importance given to the project. The project priority is then used in calculating the risk score for the project. Projects with higher priority will be given a higher weighting in calculating the risk impact.

Priority levels range from 0% - 100%. The lowest priority is 0%. The default priority is 100%. Summary projects (programs) don't have priorities.

Priorities can be changed in any Project view: Portfolio Gantt, Risked Projects, and Project Portfolio. You don't need to open individual projects to change the project priority. You must have appropriate permissions to change a priority:

- Administrators can change priorities for any project
- Managers can change priorities in projects for which he/she has permission
- Users cannot change priorities

#### Project priorities are used in the following calculations:

- 1. Project risk scores for non-schedule risks are multiplied on project priority. Read **The Project Risk Score and Project Ranking** for more information.
- 2. Risk impact is multiplied on project priority. Here is an example. The project with project priority 50% has a summary project:

Project Name	Priority
Summary Project	
Project #1	50%

Project #1 has a risk assigned to it. For Project #1, the risk register would look like:

Risk Name	Probability	Impact	Score	
Risk 1	50%	80%	40%	

A risk register with the same risk for a summary project would look like:

Risk Name	Probability	Impact	Score	
Risk 1	50%	40%	20%	

The risk impact is multiplied on Project #1 priority = 50% for the summary project only.

To reflect project priority in the risk impacts you should open, recalculate and save the project.

## **About Project Risk Scores and Rankings**

Project risk scores represent the level of risk in the project. The project risk score allows you to compare and rank projects based on their risk exposure. Project risk scores are shown in the **Portfolio Gantt** and **Project Portfolio** views.

RiskyProject calculates three risk scores separately:

- For duration
- For cost
- For non-schedule risk categories

## How Cost and Schedule Risk Scores Are Calculated

Project duration score is calculated using the following formula:



Where:

**Risked Duration** – could be mean project duration as a result of analysis, mean project duration plus a standard deviation of duration, or a certain percentile of the entire project duration.

Original Duration - Original (baseline) project duration with no risks and uncertainties

- If the project does not have duration risks, the **Duration** score will be equal 1.
- If the Duration risk score is > 1, the project has threats related to duration.
- If the Duration risk score is < 1, the project has opportunities related to duration.

## How Non-Schedule and Cost Risk Scores Are Calculated

Risk scores for non-schedule or cost risks are calculated in the following manner:

1. For each project and category there is an array for risk results. For example, if there are two risks "Quality of installation" (probability 50%, impact 30%) and "Quality of manufacturing" (probability 20%, impact 40%), the array for the quality category may look like this:

Iteration	Cumulative Impact
1	0
2	30% + 40% = 70%
3	30%
4	0
5	40%
6	0

7	0
8	30%
9	30%
10	30%

- 2. The mean of this array is calculated and multiplied by the weight for each non-schedule risk category
- 3. The sum of values from Step 2 is calculated for the particular project for all risk categories; this number represents the absolute non-schedule risk score for the particular project.
- 4. Absolute non-schedule risk scores for all projects are normalized in such a way that:
  - if a project does not have any risks, the score will = 1
  - if a project has opportunities, the score will be < 1
  - if a project has threats, the score will be > 1.

In this way the risk scores for non-schedule risks will be compatible with risk scores for duration and cost.

### **Risk Meters**

Project risk score factoring in duration and cost only is displayed using the Risk Meter in Project Summary view and the Project Information dialog (see *Viewing Project Details in the Portfolio Views*).



## **About Portfolio Options and Preferences**

In RiskyProject Enterprise, there are three types of project defaults that can be set:

- **Portfolio Options** are common settings for all projects in the portfolio these options include units, currencies, defaults calculation parameters, among others. Portfolio settings are applied to each project setting either when the project is created (imported) or each time the project is opened.
- **Project Options** can be adjusted separately for each project; Project Options and Portfolio Options are very similar.
- **Preferences** are specific to each computer and can be set by any user.

#### **To change Portfolio Options or Preferences:**

- 1. Click the **Projects** tab.
- 2. In the **Portfolio Settings** group, click **Portfolio Options** or **Preferences.**



#### **To Change Project Options:**

- 1. Open a project.
- 2. Click the **Schedule** tab.
- 3. In the Settings and Options group, click Project Options.

## **About Portfolio Options**

Portfolio options set the defaults that are applied to all new projects in the database and require administrative permissions to configure.

The Portfolio Options dialog box includes seven tabs:

- **General** tab to set up general information regarding the organization and can be used for reporting purposes
- **Duration** tab to define the calculation of task durations
- **Calendar** tab to calculate project schedules
- Units tab to define how time units are displayed or input
- **Calculation** tab to set up default calculation parameters
- Cost tab to input default cost parameters and calculations
- **Risk** tab to define defaults for the Global and Local risks

To read more about **Options and Settings**, see Setting up your Projects in the *RiskyProject User Guide*.

The Portfolio calendar is used to display the Portfolio Gantt chart. The Portfolio Calendar is always the **Standard** calendar.

## How Portfolio Options Are Applied

These are two ways by which portfolio options are applied to a particular project:

- Apply portfolio options to all new or imported projects the user may change individual project options at any time.
- Use only portfolio options inividual project options cannot be changed.

#### To change these rules:

- 1. Click the **Projects** tab.
- 2. In the Portfolio Settings group, click Project Options.
- 3. Click the **General** tab.
- 4. Select on the rules to apply to the Portfolio.
- 5. Click OK.

### Individual Risk Matrixes for Different Projects or Users

By default, there is one global risk matrix for all users or projects. However, you have the option to assign individual risk matrixes for different projects or users. If you assign individual risk matrixes for a particular summary project, these will automatically be propagated to all subprojects. If you assign individual matrixes to the users, these will be assigned to all users within a selected user group in your organizational breakdown structure.

#### To define individual matrixes for users and projects:

1. Click the **Risks** tab and then click on Format Risk Matrix

- 2. Click on Advanced Settings
- 3. Select Risk Matrix Settings: global, per project or per user

## About Risk Visibility (Approval) Rules

When a new risk is added to the project, this risk will be visible for the current project, the immediate summary project, all summary projects for the current project, and the entire project portfolio. The visibility rules are defined in the Risk tab of the Portfolio Options dialog.



You may always change risk visibility for a particular risk using the Risk Information dialog box. A manager or administrator can make a risk or group of risks visible by clicking on the risk ID and selecting "Make Visible (Approve)" from the shortcut menu.

Here are examples which demonstrate the ways in which particular risks will be visible for different projects within a project hieararchy, depending on risk visibility rules.



#### To Define Risk Visibility Rules:

- 1. Click the **Project** tab. In the **Portfolio Settings** group, click **Portfolio Options**.
- 2. Click the **Risk** tab
- 3. Click the Risk Visibility (Approval) Rules.
- 4. Select one of the four visibility (approval) rules.
- 5. Click OK.

## **About Preferences**

The Preferences dialog allows individual users to set up preferences for project desktop behavior and appearance, as well as setting up default export and 3<sup>rd</sup> party settings:

- 1. Select the project view that will appear whenever RiskyProject is opened from the Default View list. "\*\*\*LAST VIEW\*\*\*" will automatically load the RiskyProject session which was opened most recently.
- 2. Select or clear the **Show or hide startup view** check boxes to enable or disable the workflow bar, legends and splash screens.

Click on **Envision Database Connection Settings** to configure integration with the Proteus Envision® database. This can be done the same way as configuration for connecting with RiskyProject database, as outlined in the *RiskyProject Enterprise Administrator's Guide*.

# Chapter 3: Managing Risks, Mitigation and Response Plans, Incidents

## **Introduction to Managing Enterprise Risks**

The Risk Register and Mitigation/Response Plans in RiskyProject Enterprise behave in a manner similar to the standalone desktop version of RiskyProject. However, there are a number of important differences:

- Each time you add a risk to the Risk Register in RiskyProject Enterprise, it will be instantly saved to the database. You can add risks using the **Risk Register** view or the **Risk** tab in **Task Information** or **Resource Information** dialog boxes in a project.
- Similarly, if you add mitigation or response plans, these will be instantly saved to the database and shared between different projects.
- You must have permissions to add, modify or delete risks, mitigation, and response plans.
- Once added to the register, you can share risks among different projects based on their portfolio visibility (approval) settings.
- Risk cost calculation for summary project and on enterprise level includes risk cost for subprojects.
- You may choose to assign risks to specific projects, summary projects, or the enterprise level of the project hierarchy.
- You can assign different probabilities and impacts for the same risk to different projects or levels of the hierarchy.
- Risks can be visible (approved) in some projects and hidden (not approved) in others.
- Risk may have documents associated with them documents can be any files, including files found in Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, Microsoft Power Point, JPEG or Bitmap images, PDF files, among others.

This section focuses on features specific to the Risk Register in Enterprise. The *RiskyProject User Guide* contains more detailed information regarding how to use the Risk Register.

## How to Setup Risk Register

Risk Register view needs to be defined in advance and saved in the database to ensure consistency for all users and projects. Use the following workflow to setup Risk Register:

- 1. **Define risk categories**. If you define Risk Register columns to input risk probabilities and impacts you cannot change risk categories unless you hide these columns. Therefore, it is important to define risk categories as a first step. To define risk categories go to **Risks** -> **Risk Categories**.
- 2. Define risk properties: **Risks** -> **Risk Properties**.
- 3. Define risk matrix settings (**Risks -> Format Risk Matrix**):
  - A. Names and number of cell of risk matrix for each risk category
  - B. How probability and impact will be presented in Risk Register
  - C. Colors for different cells
  - D. Risk tolerance: relative number of cells for different colors
  - E. Order and names of bars on Risk Trend Chart
  - F. Risk Impact Calculation Algorithm: sum of impact for all categories or maximum impact of all categories
  - G. How the risk matrix is set: for all users and organizational units, for projects, or for organizational units

If you the risk matrix is set for Organizational Unit, when you logon, the risk matrix setting will be based upon you organizational unit membership. If a risk matrix is not defined for an a specific Organizational Unit project, RiskyProject will use the default risk matrix.

If Risk Matrixes are defined by project, RiskyProject will be present different risk matrixes based upon the project settings. If the risk matrix is not defined for a project, RiskyProject will use the default risk matrix.

	Select risk matrix	and ent	ter description.	C. Assig	gn mat	rix to	project or	Org Unit	<b>B</b> . S	B. Select project or Org Unit				
Form	nat										>			
	Nan	ne	Desr	cription 🔺	$\setminus$ /		Pro	ject Name		atrix 🔺 H	ow to apply risk matrix:			
1	Default Risk Matrix				$\mathbf{V}_{\mathbf{i}}$	1	🖃 🚞 Softwa	re Inception	Defa Risk	Matrix	Consideration and the			
2	Risk Matrix 1				>	2	📃 Busi	iness Plan	Default Risk	Matrix	One global risk matrix			
3	Risk Matrix 2				<	< 3 E Requirement Gathering Risk Matrix 3								
4	Risk Matrix 3					4	📃 Proje	ect Planning	Default Risk	Matrix	For specific org.units			
				<b>.</b>		.5				<u> </u>				
•	Bisk Category: Default: /	All Categories	, <b>,</b>	·	• Thre	at O (	Doportunity Do	ble click on cell to	Click on cell	Formula to Calculate	Risk Trend Chart			
	Probability Labels (Threats)	94	Probability Labels (Opport	uni 94 🔺				Custom color	to edit score	Combined Impact	Settings			
1	Probability Labels (Threats)	70	Vorsi Lauri	20.00%	Probab	bility	/							
2	Very Low	20.00%	Low	20.00 %		0.0 %								
2	Low	20.00%	Low	You can ha	ave				5	20	25			
4	High	20.00%	High											
-	nign Mar i lliab	20.00%	nign Mary Ulah	a). One risi	k matri	ix for	all project	is and org. u	nits					
5	very High	20.00%	very High	b) For eac	h proje	ect			2	16	20			
•				5). 1 01 040	in proje	001			2	10	20			
	Impact Labels (Threats)	%	Impact Labels (Opportuni	c). For eac	h organizational unit									
1	Negligible	20.00%	Negligible	20.0070			•	-		10	17			
2	Minor	20.00%	Minor	20.00%	Me	edium	3	6	1	12	15			
3	Moderate	20.00%	Moderate	20.00%	4	0 0 %								
4	Serious	20.00%	Serious	20.00%										
5	Critical	20.00%	Critical	20.00%		Low	2	4	6	8	10			
				<b>-</b>										
				<u> </u>	2	0.0 %								
Pro	bability label: C Add	А, В, С 🤇	Àdd 1, 2, 3 💿 Don't	add	Very	Low	1	2	3	4	5			
Im	pact label: C Add	А, В, С 🤇	े Add 1, 2, 3 💿 Don't	bbe			•	-			Ŭ			
-Wh	en entering risk probabilities a	and outcomes	in Risk Register and other	views:		09(	20	0.0%	0.00	60.0 % 80	0.%			
0	Show label only: e.g 'Low Imp Show percent together with it	pact" mpact labels	e a "low Impact - 15%"			0%	Nealiaible	.0 % 40 Minor	Moderate	Serious	Critical			
C	Show percent only: e.a "15%	"	eigi cowinipact - 10%						Impact					
0	Index of the label (1,2,3,4	) in drop dow	ın list			_			impact					
С	Index and label: e.g. 2: "Low	Impact" in d	rop down list		Risk To	olerance				—J——				
			1											
	Restore	e Defaults			OK	C	ancel							

4. Define columns to be presented within Risk Register for different views (tabs). In addition to entering all risk properties Risk Register allows you to input current probabilities and impacts. To define columns click on Risk Register header and select column from drop down list. Within a dropdown list you will find different types columns for probability, impact and score. You can enter probabilities impacts and scores for each category, as well as display original, pre- and post-mitigation probabilities and impacts.

In many cases probabilities for all risk categories can be the same. If such case you can define probability column only for one category, for example probability for the schedule. If you enter this probability in Risk Register, RiskyProject will automatically assign the same value to all other risk categories, such as probability for cost or probability for safety.

Below is an example how to define columns for impact. Columns for probabilities and scores are defined similarly.

#### RiskyProject Enterprise User's Guide

	Selecting probability/	impact/score colum	nns for Risk Register						
	Filter	Insert Column Before						Dashbo	ard
	General risk inf	Header for group of co	lumns			Calculated	Results: P	re-Mitigation	
	Risk Name	Number of columns:	0 Header is dislayed if nu	mber of columns > 0	ed To 💌	Proba 💌	Impac 💌	Score (	Score
1	🛞 QA process takes longe	Header Name Line 1:			velopmer	3	14	12	
2	Failed performance test	Header Name Line 2:			gn	4	2	8	
3	Delay in getting updated	Tooltip:				4	2	8	
Impa	ct (Original): First imp	act value which w	lorizontal separator between	n two lines	2 project:	4	2	8	
enter	red for this risk - Read	l only	lolor Text Color	Default Colors	2 project:	4	2	8	
7	Key software develope	Field Type		Impact ( <u>Post-Mi</u>	tigation a	nd <u>Pre-I</u>	Vitigatio	<u>n</u> ): Calcu	lated
8	🛞 Failed software installa	Field Title:	ID Time or Sunset (Pre-mitigation)	Impact for all ca	tegories -	Read o	only		
9	Calculation algorithm ha	Align Title:	Impact (Original)						
10	Unit test found serious	Width:	Impact (Pre-Mitigation)	Impost	for oach	ootogon	A. Curre	ont Impoo	t volue for
11	Product champion is not	Background Color	Impact: Cost Impact: Cost, Post-Mit	individu	al catego	v: Edita	able – p	re-mitida	tion. read-
12	Delay in developing sof		Impact: Environment Impact: Environment, Post-Mit	only for	post mi	tigation		5	
13	Software reporting com		Impact: Legal Impact: Legal, Post-Mit		_				
14	Delay in getting response		Impact: Performance	-		1	3	3	
15	Delay in financing					3	1	3	
16	New team member required	-							
•									
$( \uparrow )$	Prob/Impact	Properties							

Please read *RiskyProject User Guide* for more information how to define categories, properties, risk matrix settings, and columns.

## **About Risk Visibility and Risk Assignment**

Each risk can be visible and assigned to specific projects. Visibility and assignment are not identical:

		Visibility			Ass	signme	ent						
Visibilit accessit project	ty mea ble for and a	ans that a risk can be the specific project, summa t the enterprise level.	<b>ry</b>	Assignment means that a risk may occur (affect) the specific project, summary project or at the enterprise level.									
If a risk any proj	is not ject.	attaches a risk to a e risk can be assigned.											
		Risk Name	Open	Threat/O	Risk Assigned To	Prob	Impa	Sco					
	1	- Visible											
	2	🛞 Key analyst left a team	Opened	+ Threat	Summary Project 4	22.0%	63.6%	14.0%					
	3	Change of requirements related to UI	Opened	+ Threat	Summary Project 4	10.9%	27.3%	2.7%	マフ				
	4	Change of requirements related to data p	Opened										
Those risks	5	Change of requirements related to databa	Opened				Δ	These	risks are				
and wights in	6	Delay due to later delivery of the softwar	Opened					assign	ed to this				
	7	Installation problem	Closed					projec	ct				
this project	8	Issue with the hardware	Opened										
	9	Low quality source data	Opened				_						
	10	Nightly build is broken	Opened		Project 8	15.0%	0.0%	0.0%					
	11	Software tools can not be used for this p	Opened										
	12	Subcontractor was not able to process d	Opened										
	L_13	User management/security issue	Opened										

When you create a new risk, it will inherit the default visibility settings. Default visibility is defined in **Portfolio Options**. See **Risk Visibility** (**Approval**) **Rules** for more information.

Default visibility can be set for:

- Projects which are currently opened (Current Project)
- Only the Immediate Summary Project
- All Summary projects for this project
- At the Enterprise Level

After a risk is created, you can change the visibility if you have permissions to the projects in which you want to make this risk visible.

## **Assigning Risks to Projects**

Risk must be assigned to a specific project, a summary project, or at the enterprise (upper) level of the project hierarchy.

To assign a risk to a project or program:

1. Open the project to which you want to assign the risk; if you do not open a project or program, the risk will be assigned to the enterprise (upper) level of the project hierarchy.

) 🖨 = 🖪 🗦	RiskyProject Professional —	×
FILE * PROJECTS	SCHEDULE RISKS INCIDENTS ANALYSIS TRACKING REF Current Project: Project Planning	<b>P</b> i
Cipboard Sched	B Z U Calculate and Calendar B Z U Format B Z U Froject Resources Cost and Work Income Schedule Views Calculate Ca	<b>ge</b>
Workflow X	Filter Show All 🕺 🛣 🗟 🖬 📭 Hierarchy based on: No Hierar	lines
Projects	General risk information Calculated Results: Pre-Mitigation	Post-M
	Risk Name v Ope Risk/Issu Threat/C Risk Assigned To v Probal v Impac v Score (v Score V Probab v	Imp 📥
Risked Projects	1 🚱 Requirement changes Open Risk 🚽 Threat Assigned to 5 tasks/resource 4 3 12 4	
Project Portfolio	2 🛞 Competition on the market place Open Risk 🚽 Threat_Task 2: Develop business obj 4 1 4 🔤 3	
Schedule 🔺	3 🛄 Calculation algorithm has limitations Closed Risk	
Troject View	4 W Delay in developing software documentation Open Risk	
2 Resources	5 2 Delay in the concerned and the first of the concerned and the	project
. Cost and locome	7 Gen Deavin getting response nom de dent Open Risk	project
Cost and income	8 @ Failed intergration with third party software Open Risk	
35 Work	9 🛞 Failed performance test Open Risk	
Risks 🔺	10 B Failed software installation and configuration Open Risk Risks that have been assigned at the	
Risk Register	11 B Key software developer left a team Open Risk program level have a name (they are	
Risk Dashboard	12 2 Product champion is not available Open Risk visible) but no assignment	
Risk Report	13 @ A process takes longer Open Risk	
All Disk Assissments	14 By Software reporting component tailed Open Kisk	
Risk Assignments		
🚺 Drag N' Drop Risk		-
🔎 Mitigation, Response		•
	Prob/Impact Properties	
Ready	User: Admin Risk Register CAP NUM SCRL Sat. Apr 09.2022 11:12:2	5 PM at

- 2. Click the **Risks** tab and then in the **Risk Views** group, click **Risk Register** or **Risk Properties**.
- 3. Double-click on a Risk ID to open the Risk Information dialog box.
- 4. Enter all risk properties including probabilities and impacts; you may define different risk alternatives, risk categories, moment of risk (if a risk is assigned to a task or resource). For more information, please read the *RiskyProject User Guide*.
- 5. Click OK.

#### To view risk register on enterprise level:

If you do not have an open project or program (no blue or red bars), this indicates you are looking at the enterprise risk register:

<b>  ⊕</b> - <b>□</b> <del>]</del>	RiskyProject Professional													
FILE * PROJECTS	SCHEDULE RISKS INCIDENTS ANALYSIS TRACKING REPORT TOOLS	? 🖵 🚺												
Paste Cut Clipboard	Duration       Image: Current Project bar is not shown, therefore, this is the enterprise risk register.         Risk Status Matrix Trend       Risk Risk Risk Istatus Matrix Trend	story												
Workflow	Filter Show All 🛃 🔝 DJ Hierarchy based on: No Hierarchy	•												
Projects -	General risk information Calculated Restrict re-Mitigation	Post-Mitigation												
	Risk Name   Ope  Risk/Issu  Threat/C  Risk Assigned To  Probat  Impac  Score (  Score  Risk  Probat  Risk  Ri  Risk Risk	robab 👻 Impact (F												
Risked Projects	1 🐼 OA process takes longer Open Risk 🕁 Threat Software Developmer 4 3 12	5 3												
Project Portfolio	2 Project Planning 4 2 8	4 2												
Schedule 🔺	3 @ Competition on the ma	3 2												
\Xi Project View	4 Prailed software instal projects. Other risks are assigned ransition 1 5 5	1 5												
Resources	5 W Failed intergration with at the enterprise level.	2 2												
		4 1												
Cost and income	8 Pelav in developing software documentation Open Risk	3 2												
👫 Work	9 9 Software reporting component failed Open Risk	1 3												
Risks 🔺	10 🕑 Delay in getting response from the client Open Risk 🚽 Threat 1 3 3	1 3												
Risk Register	11 😰 Delay in financing Open Risk 🚽 Threat 3 1 3	5 1												
Risk Dashboard	12     Wey software developer left a team     Open     Risk	1 2												
Disk Depart	13     Image: Product champion is not available     Open     Risk     Image: Threat     Image: Description of the second s	1 2												
Risk Report	14 Calculation algorithm has limitations Closed Risk United Threat Assigned to 2 project:													
A Mitigation, Response	e 15 🕐 Failed performance test Open Risk 🕁 Threat 2	2 2												
莎 Assign Mitigation		-												
Risk Status		•												
	Prob/Impact Properties													
Ready	This risk is not assigned to any projects.	9,2022 11:13:39 PM												

#### To view the projects to which a risk is assigned:

When viewing the portfolio or program risk register, the **Risk Assigned To** field displays the projects (or programs) to which a risk is assigned.

In the above example, the Current Project bar is not open, which indicates that the you are looking at the Enterprise level risk register. If the risk is assigned to more than one project, the **Risk Assigned To** will become a drop-down list. Click on the list to view all of the projects to which the risk is assigned.

### **Changing Risk Visibility**

After a risk is created, you may change the list of projects within which the risk is visible.

#### To change risk visibility:

- 1. Click the Risks tab and then in the Risk Views group, click Risk Register
- 2. Double-click on a Risk ID to open the **Risk Information** dialog box.
- 3. Click the **Visibility** tab.
- 4. Select a visibility level. You may choose to make this risk visible:
  - For all projects/all levels of the hierarchy

- Only at the enterprise level of the hierarchy
- For specific projects
- 5. If you need to make your risk visible for a particular project, select projects in which you would like your project to be visible.
- 6. Click OK.

formation	access all projects to be a "All Projects" and "Only I level" visibility	ble to	select orise			
Risk Form Probabilities and outcomes Custor				Visibility Incidents		
k name: Failed software installation and configuration	in proce	Risk ID:	R00001841			
Change Risk Visibility:				Select project where this risk will be visible		_
			Project		Visible	
The Risk this visible for:		1	🖃 🔚 Software	e Inception	$\bowtie$	
All Projects			🔲 Busin	ess Pian		
C Only Enterprise Level no Project	Change risk visibility		📃 Requi	irement Gathering	$\bowtie$	
	here		Projec	ct Planning	$\boxtimes$	
Selected Projects			🗆 🔄 Software	e Elaboration		
		6	Produ	ict Design	×	
		/	Software	e Construction	×	
When you make risk visible on certain level of p	project hierarchy you approve it	8	Softw	vare Development	×	
A	the and bilders data and shares statistics	9	- Contware	e Transition	×	
Administrators or managers may access all visit	ble and hidden risks and change visibility:	10	Marke	ating: Trade Show, etc.	×	
<ol> <li>For a group of risks, select hidden risks, righ visible (approve)</li> </ol>	t-click on the risk ID and make them	12	Project1	ang. Hude one w, etc.		
To change default visibility (for new risks) go to	r.		_		1	
Project Tab -> Portfolio Options in Portfolio	Settings group ->				/	
Click on Risk Visibility (Approval) Rules					<u> </u>	
				The risk is visible in		
				these projects		
		•				_

### Automatically Assign Risks to Upper Levels of the Hierarchy

In the above example, the risk "Issue with the hardware" is visible for Project 7 and for Summary Project 7. Here is an important rule:

If you assign a risk to a low level of the hierarchy, it will be automatically assigned to levels directly above it unless visibility is explicitly limited to the project.

In our previous example, if you assign the risk "Issue with the hardware" to Project 7, it will be automatically assigned to Summary Project 3.

To view the projects or programs to which a risk is assigned:

- 1. Open a summary project (Summary Project 3 in our example).
- 2. Click the **Risks** tab and then in the **Risk Views** group, click **Risk Register** or **Risk Properties**.
- 3. Double-click on a Risk ID to open the **Risk Information** dialog box.
- 4. Click the **Probability and Outcome tab** (if you do not have a project schedule) or **Assign to Tasks or Resources Tab** (if you have a project schedule).

5. You will be able to see the risk, which is automatically assigned to the summary project. Column **From Project** indicates where the risk was assigned originally. The original assignment can be changed here. You would have to go to the sub project (Project 7 in our example) to make any changes to the risk assignment.



The same process of automatic risk assignment also works at the enterprise level. Therefore, if a risk is visible at the enterprise level and you assign it to a particular project, the risk will be automatically assigned to the enterprise level.

Ľ Š

You may assign the risk to a summary level, even it is already assigned to the project level. This is useful in situations where the project level and summary level risk is assigned to different categories. For example, at the project level "Pipeline Crack" is a quality risk, whereas on the portfolio level the same risk can also be defined as a public relations risk.

- When you change the visibility for the risk, it will automatically be assigned to the associated summary project or to the enterprise level.
- You must have appropriate permissions to make a risk visible for a summary project or at the enterprise level. If you do not have these permissions, your risk will not be automatically assigned to the upper level of the hierarchy.
- Automatic risk assignment only goes upward from lower to higher levels of the hierarchy (summary project and enterprise level), but not from summary projects down to sub projects.
- Original risk assignments may have multiple mutually-exclusive alternatives with different probabilities and impacts. These risk assignments may also have a particular distribution of

risk outcomes. When a risk is automatically assigned to the upper levels of the hierarchy, one integrated risk assignment will be generated, the impact and probability of which will be equivalent to the original risk assignment.

### **About Hidden Risks**

Risks that are not visible for certain projects will be flagged as hidden for those projects. They will still exist in the risk register, but only administrators, managers and the particular owner/manager of the risks will be able to see them.

#### To see a hidden risk:

- 1. Click the **Risks** tab and then in the **Risk Views** group, click **Risk Register** or **Risky Properties**.
- 2. From Hierarchy based on drop-down list select Visible/Hidden.
- 3. You will be able to see all hidden risks for the current project or at the enterprise level, if no projects are opened.

## **About the Risk Approval Process**

Risks entered into the system may need to be **approved** by a manager before they become visible to other users. The manager or administrator can make risks assigned to specific projects visible in other projects. There are two methods to make projects visible:

- 1. Using the **Risk Information** dialog box (see **Changing Risk Visibility**) using this method you can only change the visibility for one risk at a time.
- 2. Using the **Make Visible (Approve)** command you can modify the risk visibility for a group of risks.

#### To make a hidden risk visible:

- 1. Open the project where you want the risk to be visible. If you don't open any project, the risks will be visible at the enterprise level.
- 2. Click the **Risks** tab and then in the **Risk Views** group, click **Risk Register** or **Risky Properties**.
- 3. Select a single risk or a group of risks.
- 4. Right-click on the **Risk ID**.
- 5. Click Make Visible (Approve).

You must be an administrator or a manager to make risks visible. Even if you are the manager or owner of a particular risk, you cannot make the risk visible for other levels of the hierarchy.

## **Deleting Risk Assignments**

Risks can be deleted using the same process as in the standalone RiskyProject (see the *RiskyProject User Guide* for more information). You may:

- select a risk in the risk register and press Delete, or
- select a risk or group of risks, right-click on a risk ID and click Delete Risk.

All risk assignments will also be deleted. If these risks are assigned to the projects you need to open projects individually, recalculate them and save them. This will allow the project risk score and other information related to project uncertainties to be updated.

## **Calculating Risk Probability and Impacts**

Risk probability, impact and scores for all risks associated with a particular project or at the enterprise level are updated each time the risk register is loaded or refreshed:

- When you click the **Refresh** button
- When you close the current project or load a new project
- When you input a new risk
- When you switch views to Risk Register, Risk Matrix, RiskyProperties, or Risk Details

To update the risk register, Monte Carlo simulations are automatically performed. This is required to statistically calculate the cumulative impact of each risk. Monte Carlo simulations are required because the same risk may be assigned to different projects and within a project's various tasks and resources. The process of impact calculation is outlined in **The Project Risk Score and Project Ranking**.

The probability for each risk is based on the maximum probability of all risk assignments.

## Locking and Unlocking Risks

Only one user can edit a risk at a time. Risk editing is done in the Risk Information Dialog box. Once a user opens a risk, this risk will be locked for all other users. Locked risks have the icon an ext to the risk name. The risk will be automatically unlocked once risk editing is complete (once the user closes the Risk Information Dialog box).

If a risk is locked it can be unlocked by an administrator. As an example, it may be necessary for an administrator to intervene if a user has a risk opened for a long time period.

#### To unlock a project or a group of projects:

- 1. Click the **Risks** tab. In the **Risks Views** group, click **Risk Register** or **Risk Properties** view.
- 2. Select the risk or multiple risks you would like to unlock.
- 3. Right-click on the project ID and from the shortcut menu, click Unlock Risk.

### **About Cost of Risk Calculations**

Cost of risk calculates the total cost of a risk that takes into account the risk mitigation plans linked to the risk. Cost of risk calculation in RiskyProject Enterprise includes calculation of risk cost for subprojects for summary projects and at the enterprise level. The Risk cost calculation is performed in the **Risk Form** tab of the **Risk Information** dialog box. Only Cost of Residual Risk and Potential Loss can be entered in Risk Form. Other cost parameters are calculated. You can modify Risk Form to show or hide different fields.

	Cost before mitigat	tion:					Cost after mitigation						
Potent	tial Lost:	\$400.00	*	* Cost of Mitigation from Waterfall tab: Cost of Response Plan: \$0.00			\$0.00	*	÷		Total cost of risk	Saving from	
Proba	bility before mitigation:	60.0 %	<u>+</u> =				Cost of Residual Risk:	\$0.00	-	*		with mitigation:	mitigation/enhacement
Expec	cted Loss:	\$240.00	*	\$0.00	-	^ ~ +	Probability After Mitigation:	60.0 %	*	=			
Cost f	from subprojects:	\$145.36	*	I			Expected Loss:	\$0.00	*		=	\$0.00	\$240.00
Auto	calculation of expected	l loss (from	Monte Ca	rlo):	No	r							

#### **Cost Before Mitigation**

1. **Potential Loss** (property "*Cost before mitigation*"): the loss in monetary terms if the risk occurs. This value can be entered manually if you select No for "*Auto calculation of expected loss (from Monte Carlo*)" or if you don't open a schedule.

For example, for the risk "low quality component", the potential loss is \$50,000. You would incur this cost if a low quality component were supplied.

- If you don't open a schedule, the Probability Before Mitigation value is based on the risk values entered in the Probabilities and Outcome tab of Risk Information dialog box. See Risk Probabilities and Impacts for more information. If you have a schedule Probability Before Mitigation comes from results of Monte Carlo simulations.
- 3. **Expected Loss** (property "*Pre-Mitigation Expected Loss*") takes into account risk probability. It is an indicator that helps you to compare the costs of different risks. Expected loss can be calculated manually or automatically depending on selection "*Auto calculation of expected loss (from Monte Carlo*)".
  - a. Manual calculation of Expected Loss: You can manually calculate the expected loss for individual risks by running two simulations: one with the risk open and the other with the risk closed. The difference in the total project costs is the expected cost of the risk.

#### Expected loss = Potential Loss \* Probability (pre-mitigation)

For example, probability of risk "low quality component" equals 50%. Potential loss equals 50,000. Expected loss will be 25,000 = 50,000 \* 50%.

b. Automatic calculation of Expected Loss is done based on results of Monte Carlo simulations of project schedule:

#### Expected loss = (Project Cost with Risks – Project Cost Original) \* Correlation Coefficient

The correlation coefficient is calculated using project cost and cost increases due to a specific risk occurring. For example, the project cost with risks and uncertainties is 100,000. Project cost without risks and uncertainties is 90,000. In addition, the correlation coefficient for the specific risk is 0.8. Expected loss will be (100,000 - 90,000) \* 0.8 = 8,000. The automatic calculation cannot be performed at the enterprise level or on summary projects, as they do not include project activities. For automatic calculation of Expected loss of the current project, RiskyProject will calculate Potential Loss for current project = Expected loss / Probability (pre mitigation).

4. **Cost from Subprojects** (property "*Pre-Mitigation Expected Loss (Sub-Projects)*") is an expected cost from all subprojects where "*Auto calculation of expected loss (from Monte Carlo)*" is "Yes". It is calculated only for summary projects and at the enterprise level. It is always zero for subprojects.

#### 5. Pre-Mitigation Loss (Total Expected Loss):

## Total Expected loss = Expected Loss on Current Level of Project Hierarchy + Cost from Subprojects

Total expected loss is calculated at the enterprise or at the summary project level. For example, a summary project has two sub projects with expected loss \$8,000 and \$7,000,

which are calculated automatically. The summary project itself has expected losses of \$5,000, defined manually. Total expected loss will be \$20,000.

Total expected loss cannot be shown on Risk Form, but can be inserted as a column in the Risk Register.

#### **Cost Of Mitigation**

1. Cost of Mitigation is taken from Waterfall tab of Risk Information dialog box. It is the cost associated with efforts to reduce the probability and impact of the risk.

For example, mitigation plans will include "Additional QA procedure" and "QA audit of supplier's operation", which would cost \$10,000 in total.

#### **Cost After Mitigation**

2. Cost of Response Plan. Even if a mitigation plan is executed as planned, there will still be a cost associated with a risk, as it is possible to reduce risk, but not to eliminate it (an exception is when you are able to avoid the risk). The response plan may be executed if the risk occurs and will be calculated using the cost entered for the response plan associated with this risk. This cost is entered Mitigation and Response view.

For example, if the risk "low quality component" occurs, this component needs to be replaced with a new one, which would cost \$20,000.

3. Residual risk may still exist after the risk response and is cost is calculated as the **Cost of Residual Risk**.

For example, the new component installed as a risk response can still be defective. The residual cost of the risk will be \$10,000.

4. **Probability After Mitigation** comes from **Waterfall** tab of **Risk Information** dialog box. See "Risk Mitigation and Response Plans" for more information.

For example: Risk Probability after mitigation equals 25% because of the execution of the mitigation plan "additional QA procedure", probability of risk "Low quality component" is reduced two times.

5. **Expected Loss After Mitigation** (property "*Post-mitigation Expected Loss*") takes in to account the fact that risk may not occur.

## Expected Loss After Mitigation = (Cost of Response Plan + Cost of Residual Risk) \* Probability After Mitigation

For example, probability of risk "low quality component" after mitigation equals 25%. Expected loss after mitigation will be \$7,500 = (\$20,000 + \$10,000) \* 25%.

#### Other Cost Indicators (Properties)

1. Cost After Mitigation = Expected Loss After Mitigation + Cost of Mitigation

For example: Total cost after mitigation of risk "low quality component" will be \$17,500 = \$7,500 + \$10,000

2. **Saving from Mitigation/Enhancement** is the difference between costs with and without mitigation. If this number is negative mitigation efforts will not lead to cost saving.

#### Saving from Mitigation = Expected Loss – Total Risk Cost after Mitigation

For example, total cost after mitigation of risk "low quality component" will be \$17,500. Expected loss \$25,000. Saving from Mitigation is \$7.500. Because this number is positive, it makes sense to perform mitigation efforts.

## **About Risk Documents**

You can add documents related to a risk to the risk register as part of your risk management process. This can be useful in order to add artifacts that were used during risk identification, assessment or other processes that are considered important to managing the current risk, but also for future reviews.

#### To add a document to a risk:

- 1. Open the risk register.
- 2. Open the risk to which you want to add the document.
- 3. Click the **Documents** tab.
- 4. You can manage existing documents using the following buttons:
  - **Extract Document**: Click to extract a copy of a document saved to the database onto a local drive.
  - Update Document: Click to update a linked document.
  - **Delete Document**: Click to delete a document from the risk.

Afformation Rek Form Probabilies and outcomes. Custom Properties. Magation Rek Review Hatory Documents Vability Incidents At name: [Pailed software intallation and configuration process. Rek UD: P00001811 UB: Configuration and configuration process. Rek UD: P0000181 UB: Configuration and Rek Proceediation Rek Proceediation Rek Proceediation Rek Proceediation Rek Proceediation Rek Proceediation Proceediation Rek Proceediation R		
Risk Form Probabilities and outcomes Custom Properties Magation Risk Review Hatory Documents Vability Indients  Arran: Folded software installation and configuration process  Risk form Probabilities and outcomes Custom Properties Risk Review Risk (D: R000011841 Understand Risk Project Risk	Information	×
ki kame: [midel adhivane installation and configuration process] Rek (D: [R00001841] Table dick on document to open 8	Risk Form         Probabilities and outcomes         Custom Properties         Mitigation         Risk Review         History         Documents	Visibility Incidents
bubb circle Edited Document Update Document Update Document   Stamet by: Johan 04/13/22 18.42   Stamet by: Johan 04/13/22 18.44   Stamet by: Johan 04/13/22 18	Tisk name: Failed software installation and configuration process Risk ID: R00001841	
Summed by Admin 04/1302 18.42 04/1302 18.43 04/1302 18.43 04/1302 18.43 04/1302 18.43 04/1302 18.43 04/1302 18.43 04/1302 18.43 Click these buttons to extract, update or delete a selected document. Under PresentationTemplate 04/1302 18.44 04/144 04/144 04/144 04/144 04/144 04/144 04/144 04/144 0	Double click on document to open it Update Document Update Document	nt Delete Document
Stemete by Admi 04/13/22 18:43          RekyProjectAdminiGuide       04/13/22 18:43         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:43         Standard by Admi       Click these buttons to extract, update or delete a selected document.         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:43         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:44         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:45         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:44         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:44         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:44         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:45         Standard by Admi       04/13/22 18:45 <td>Submited by: Admin           RiskyProjectUserGuide           Link: C:\RiskyProjectRiskyProjectSetuplFiles/Documentation/RiskyProjectUserGuide.pdf</td> <td>04/13/22 16:42</td>	Submited by: Admin           RiskyProjectUserGuide           Link: C:\RiskyProjectRiskyProjectSetuplFiles/Documentation/RiskyProjectUserGuide.pdf	04/13/22 16:42
Summed by Admin  Summed by Admin  R _Tutorial  R _Tutorial  C	Submited by: Admin           Submited by: Admin           RiskProjectAdminGuide           Link: CRaskyProjectRiskyProjectSetup/Files/Documentation/RiskyProjectAdminGuide.pdf	Click these buttons to extract
Journel of Advint Text CVRais/Project/Rais/Project/Satup?Has/Samples/interePresentationTemplate.pot Source by Advin OV/13/2218.44 Text CVRais/Project/Rais/Project/Satup?Has/SourcentationTemplate.pot MaskyProject/Rais/Project/Satup?Has/SourcentationTemplate.pot MaskyProject/Rais/Project/Satup?Rais/Project/Satup?Rais/Project/Satup?2.ap Documents are listed here. Click to add a document Add Document or Link OK Cancel Help	Submited by: Admin  Rep_Tutorial  Link: CRIskyProjectRiskyProjectSetuplFiles/Samples/RP_Tutorial.mpp  Submatch for Admin	update or delete a selected document.
Submit dy: Admi 04/13/22 18.44  Citics CRRskyProjectI.Res/p	Submited by Admin interverPresentationTemplate Link: C1RiskyProjectRiskyProjectSetupiFiesISamplesiintaverPresentationTemplate pot	
Submited by: Admin O4/13/22 18:44  RiskyProject.RiskyProject.RiskyProject.Respup:RiskyProject.Resetup32 ap  Documents are listed here.  Click to add a document  Add Document or Link  OK Cancel Help	Submited by: Admin  RiskyProjectGettingStarted  Link: CVIskyProjectGettingStarted  Link: CVIskyProjectGettingStarted.pdf	04/13/22 18:44
Documents are listed here.         Click to add a document         Add Document or Link.         OK       Cancel	Submited by: Admin Submited by: Admin RiskyProjectLiteSetup32 Link: C:RiskyProjectRiskyProjectSetupIRiskyProjectLiteSetup32 aip	04/13/22 18:44
Click to add a document	Documents are listed here.	
Add Document or Link     OK Cancel Help	Click to add a d	document
OK Cancel Help	Add Document or Link	,
		OK Cancel Help

## Adding a Document to a Risk

To add a document to a risk:

- 1. Open the **Document** tab.
- 2. Click the **Add or Link Document** button. The Document Description dialog box will open.
- 3. Type in a document name in the **Document Name** box.
- 4. Type in a description of the document in the **Document Description** box.
- 5. Select either the Add link or Save document in the database option.

There are some considerations you should note in regards to these options:

- If you choose to link a document, this provides a path to the local computer. Therefore, it may not be valid for other system users.
- If you select **Add to database**, over time this can potentially impact database size and may lead to decreased performance.
- 6. Click the **Browse** button to locate the file.
- 7. Click OK.

## **Risk Register and Organizational Units**

The Risk Register can be filtered based on organizational units. The Organizational breakdown structure is defined in User Management console. For more information about organizational breakdown structures, please refer to The *RiskyProject Enterprise Administrator's Guide*.

Each risk can have organizational unit as a risk property. Organizational Unit risk property is a dropdown list defined in User Management dialog. It is possible to assign Organizational Unit properties:

- In the Risk Form (Risk Information Dialog)
- In the Custom Properties tab of Risk Information Dialog
- In the Risk Register view directly by inserting Organizational Unit column in Risk Register grid.

Risk Information Risk Form Probabilities and outco	mes Custern Properties Mitigation   F Failed software installation and configuration	Review History Documents process Risk ID:	R00001841 Edit Risk Form Layout
You can also define Organizational unit using Custom Properties Tab o Risk Information Dialog	Risk Lifecycle:	Drg Unit: Probability: Company Level  Company Level  Impact: Engineering Software Hardware Security	I    Schedule:    Cost:    0    V
	/	, 	· ·
Risk Owner: Risk Manager:	Define Organizational unit using Risk Form	Management Strategy: at Strategy: Mitigate rtunity Strategy: Enhance	Imeline           Start Date:         05/22/17 22:16           End Date:         05/23/18 08:00
Cost before mit Potential Lost: Probability before mitigatic Expected Loss: Cost from subprojects: Auto calculation of expec	(gation:	Cost after miligation:           Cost of Response Plan:         \$0.00 - \$\frac{1}{\screwtar}\$           Cost of Residual Risk:         \$0.00 - \$\frac{1}{\screwtar}\$           Probability After Mitigation:         \$10.0 % - \$\frac{1}{\screwtar}\$           Expected Loss:         \$0.00 - \$\frac{1}{\screwtar}\$	Total cost of risk with mitigation:     Solution:     Solution:
	, _	Cause:	
Response Plan:		• •	v
			OK Cancel Help

Once Organizational Units are defined, you can filter the Risk Register based on organizational units. The Organizational Units are selected using the drop-down list located at the right top corner of the Risk Register, Risk Matrix, and Risk Trend views.

Filtering the Risk Register based on an organizational unit takes into account the Organizational Hierarchy or Organizational Breakdown Structure. For example, if you have Organizational Unit "Administration" and it has two subunits "Accounting" and "HR". In this case, in the Risk Register, if you select "Administration"from drop down list, risks that belong the the organization untils "Accounting" or "HR" will be shown.

If you select "Company Level" from "Organizational Unit" downdown list, you will be presented with all visible (approved) risks in Risk Register.

) 🖨 = 🗟 🗦									RiskyProject Prof	ssiona	əl					-			— П	×
FILE * PROJECTS	SCHE	DULE	RISKS	INCIDEN	ITS ANALYS	SIS TR	ACKING	REPORT	TOOLS									chara ta av	aand	1
Paste ∽ Undo Clipboard	en Sav	e Save ect As Project	Close Project	Refresh Portfolio	<ul> <li>Indent</li> <li>Outdent</li> <li>Structure</li> </ul>	Portfolio Gantt P	Risked Projects I	Project Portfolio	ys 🔹	Imp from	ort Ex file to	port Imp file from	oort Export XML to XMI ort	Main P L Inform	noject ation	Pol	drop	odown list of	org units	
Workflow ×		Filter		Sho	w All	L XI	ta 🕴		Hierarchy b	ased o	in: No	Hierarchy		•			Org.Ur	nit: Company Level		-
Projects -	-				General rick info	rmation			1	C.	loulater	I Decute: I	re Miliation	ī	Г		Poet Milios	N	ame	<b>_</b> _
Portfolio Gantt			Die	k Nama	General risk into		Diek/leeu	Threat/C -	Pick Assigned To		abal -	Impac v	Score (	Score		Probab v	Impact (E	🗉 🗃 Company Lev	el	<sub>1</sub>
Risked Projects	1	🧭 Failed	software	installation	and configurati		Risk	Threat	Software Transitio		1	s s	5			1	s	🗆 💼 Engineerin	9	
Project Portfolio	2	Delay	in getting	updated re	quirements	Open	Risk	Threat			4	1	4			4	1	Softwar	e 	
Schedule	3	🗿 Unit te	st found s	serious bug	js.	Open	Risk	Threat	Software Developr	ner	4	1	4			4	1		e	
Project View	4	🛞 Failed	performa	nce test		Open	Risk				4	1	4			2	2	Security		
	5	🚯 Delay	in financir	ng		Open	Risk	Threat			3	1	3			5	1	🗂 Admin		
28 Resources	6	Delay	in getting	response f	from the client	Open	Risk	Threat		_	1	2	2	1		1	3	Finance		•
Cost and Income	8	Softw	are repor	ting compo	nent falled rit party softwar	Open	RISK	↓ Threat			1	1	2	u n		2	2	2 Some ti	hird party software libr	aries a
2호텔 Work	9	Key se	oftware d	eveloper le	eft a team	Open	Risk	Threat			2	1	2	р П		1	1	2 Softwa	re is done in small tear	n. If at
Risks -	10	🕑 Delay	in develop	, ping softwa	are documentatio	or Open	Risk	Threat			1	2	2	0			2	6		
Risk Register	11	😨 Produ	ct champi	on is not av	ailable	Open	Risk	🕁 Threat			-				_			1		
Risk Dashboard	12	Calcul	ation algo	rithm has li	mitations	Closed	Risk	Threat	Assigned to 2 proje	ct	S	elect	Organ	nizatio	na	l Unit				
Risk Report	13	🔮 QA pro	ocess tak	es longer		Open	Risk				fr	om d	rondov	n list	t to	filter		QA pro	cess includes testing o	of softv
											R	isk R	eniste	r						
													ogioto	••						
Assign Mitigation																				
Risk Status																				
Risk Matrix																				
Risk Trend																				
Incidents -	-																			_
🛕 Incident Register	•	1																		•
	$\bigcirc$	Prob/	Impact		Properties															
Ready													U	ser: Admin	Risk	Register		CAP NUM SCRL W	ed, Apr 13,2022 7:12:	51 PM 📑

## **Managing Mitigation and Response Plans**

In RiskyProject risk mitigation and response plans are available for all projects and organizational units. Risk Mitigation and response plan can be entered and edited in **Mitigation and Response View**. RiskyProject Enterprise allows linking mitigation and response plans not only to individual task as in standalone desktop version, but also to a project. If you associate plan with entire project cost, actual cost, and percent completed of entire project will be used in mitigation plan.

#### To link mitigation or response plan with a project or a task:

- 1. Open a project. This project will become current
- 2. On the Risks tab, click Mitigation and Response to open the view.
- 3. Double click on the **Mitigation** or **Response Plan ID**; the Mitigation of Response Plan properties dialog box opens.
- 4. Select task from the list of tasks; only one task can be selected.
- 5. If you want this mitigation and response plan to be associated with the current project, select the checkbox the at bottom of dialog box.

To reset the selection of the task and project, click **Clear task selection**.

Mitigation Plan Properties			Enter description of the mitigation or response plan
	uon Man: Milli	_	
Select	Associated Task:		lear task selection
1	Task Name		<b>_</b>
3 4	<ul> <li>Rig Mobilization</li> <li>Drilling</li> </ul>		
5 6 7	<ul> <li>Rig Release</li> <li>Gamma Ray Test with Log Correction</li> <li>Completion</li> </ul>		Select task associated with mitigation or response plan from the list
Mitig	gation or response plan is associated with entire project 'Elmworth'		
e this cheo igation pla ire project	Ckbox to indicate that this an will be associated with		

## **Managing Incidents**

Incidents are events that can be recorded, viewed and reported in RiskyProject. In RiskyProject, incidents are managed similarly to risks. RiskyProject has an **Incident Register**. This register is similar to Risk Register. Each Incident has a list of customizable properties that are a different set than risk properties. Risks and incidents can be linked to each other: one risk may have different incidents, while one incident may have multiple risks. Incidents have customizable impact classifications such as Severe Impact, Moderate Impact, Low Impact. The Incidents feature is only available in RiskyProject Enterprise and requires connection to a database.

These views can be accessed using Incident tabs within the workflow bar or ribbon:

- 1. Incidents in the Incident Register
- 2. Incident Statistics as a chart showing occurrence of incidents over time

## **Enabling Incident Register**

To enable Incidents Tabs in Workflow Bar and Ribbon:

- 1. On the **Projects** tab, click **Portfolio Options** > **General** tab.
- 2. Click Enable incident tracking and reporting (Incident tab).
- 3. Click **OK**. Incidents are now available.

### **Incident Classification**

You can define incident classifications and how incidents appear on the **Incident Statistics** chart. The order of the bars on the Incident Statistics are associated with particular incident classes (groups). For example, for each time period **Low** (green), **Moderate** (yellow), and **Severe** (Red color) are first, second, and third respectively.

#### Using Incident Classification Settings dialog box you can define:

- 1. The order using the **Move Up** and **Move Down** buttons.
- 2. The class name (group).
- 3. Chart periodicity (monthly, quarterly, yearly, etc.)
- 4. Maximum number of periods on the Statistics chart.

To open the Incident Classification Settings in Incidents tab, click **Classification** in the **Settings** group.

## **About Incident Properties**

Similarly, to risks each incident has properties that record information about the incident. You can use incident properties to search and filter the Incident Register. Incident properties can be have the following types:

- String text information
- Integer number
- Real number
- Resource can be taken from list of resources
- Date
- Picklist: dropdown list with values

Integer numbers and real numbers have maximum and minimum values.

The list of incident properties supports a hierarchy and organized into groups.

### Customizing the default incident properties

#### To customize the incident properties:

- 1. Click the **Incident** tab > **Settings** group > **Default Properties**.
- 2. Select a row under which you want to add a new incident property.
- 3. Right-click on the row number and choose New Property Item.
- 4. Type in the name.
- 5. Select the type and required values (i.e maximum and minimum values ).
- 4. Use the **Indent** and **Outdent** arrows to create groups of incident properties.
- 5. If you have Picklist type incident property double-click on incident property ID; Picklist dialog box will opens where you can enter the list of values.

Default incident properties are saved in the database and can be used for all projects. You may use the **Restore Default** button to overwrite changes in default incident properties you made with standard set of incident properties

## **Incident ID Settings**

You can generate Incident IDs automatically. Alternatively, you can enter Incident IDs manually in the same manner as you enter any other incident property. If an Incident ID is generated automatically, you can overwrite it manually. Incident IDs will be incremented each time you enter a new incident.

Incident IDs can include four components:

- 1. **Prefix** any symbols (optional)
- 2. Number from 4 to 16 digits (optional)
- 3. Suffix any symbols (optional)
- 4. **Date** date format can be defined (optional)

The Incident ID may be not unique if you manually overwrite automatically generated IDs.

#### To enable automatic generation of Incident ID and define the format of Incident ID:

- 1. Click the **Schedule** tab. In the **Settings** group, click **Options**.
- 2. Click the **Incident** tab.
- 3. Click on **Incident ID Format** to define rules for Incident ID automatic generation; **Incident ID Format** dialog box opens.
- 4. Define the Incident ID prefix and suffix.
- 5. Define the number of digits for Incident ID generation.
- 6. Enable / disable dates as part of the Incident ID format and define the date format and position.
- 7. Define starting number of Incident ID

## **Viewing the Incident Register**

The **Incident** view allows you to:

- View a list of incidents with their properties; you can use different incident hierarchies based on classification, owner, or manager
- Sort and filter the Incident Register by clicking on the icon on the right corner of the column header; to undo filtering click on Show All in left corner of the view.
- Insert or delete columns with incident properties, define headers for any individual column or group of columns;
- Create multiple views or tabs shown at the bottom of the view; each view may have different sets of columns and filters
- Edit incident properties either within a view directly or using Incident Information Dialog (double click on Incident ID)
- Print the Incident Register
- Export to Excel



## **Viewing the Incident Statistics Chart**

The Incident Statistics view is used to show the number of issues raised over time for each particular classification. Each classification can be modified. To edit colors, order, number of periods, and periodicity (yearly, monthly, etc) use the **Incident** -> **Classification** dialog box.



## **Editing Incident Information**

To edit incident information:

In Incident view or Incident Statistics view double click on incident ID. The **Incident Information** dialog box will open.

Incident Information Dialog box includes the following tab:

- General Tab: allows you to edit Incident Name, Incident ID, Date and Time of Incident, Incident description, Incident follow up actions.
- Custom Properties: allows you to edit all individual custom properties.
- Associated Risks: allows you to assign risks to the incident.





You can assign incidents to risks in the Incidents tab of the Risk Information dialog box. When in the Risk Register you can double-click on a risk ID and go to Incident tab.

# Chapter 4: User Management and RiskyProject Configuration

## **About User Management**

In RiskyProject Enterprise, user management is based on users, roles and permissions. Each individual who accesses the system should be assigned user logon credentials which are defined in the User Administration panel. Users can be assigned one of three roles: Administrator, Manager or User. The *RiskyProject Enterprise Administrator's Guide* describes the user management process. This section describes only how the user can define personal information.

## About Roles

RiskyProject Enterprise has 3 defined roles that can be assigned to users: Administrator, Manager and User.

- Administrator: the administrator has full access to RiskyProject functions.
- **Manager**: the manager may have full access to RiskyProject, except for the ability to manage users and change user permissions. The manager's permissions can be limited by the administrator.
- User: the users cannot edit managers, users, modify portfolio settings, or delete projects. In addition, the administrator can limit a user's permissions.

Only administrators can edit user information. A user can only edit their own information, including passwords. The administrator cannot set or modify user passwords. Only administrators and managers can change risk visibility information.

## **Updating Personal Information**

#### To update personal information:

- 1. From the File menu, click Users. The User Management panel will open.
- 2. Review your permissions permissions cannot be changed by users.
- 3. Update your personal information.
- 4. Click OK.

### **About Permissions**

Each user has different permissions:

- Create, modify and delete risks
- Create, modify and delete mitigation and response plans
- Create projects

By default, the Administrator role has all available permissions. Only administrators can change permissions for users and managers. For more information about how to change user permissions, please read the *RiskyProject Enterprise Administrator's Guide*. All administrators, managers and users can view all projects and all visible risks. However, if a user does not have permission to modify a risk or a mitigation/response plan, the Risk Information or Mitigation Plans will be read-only. If a user attempts to open the project to which they do not have permission, they will be prompted that they do not have permission to perform this action.

- You can always create risks in projects to which you have permission. However, you need permissions to create risks at the enterprise level.
- Both managers and administrators can approve (make visible) risks at each level of the project hierarchy.
- A user can always modify risks as soon as he or she is listed as an owner or a manager for this risk.
- A user or manager must have permissions for all projects (the entire portfolio) to be able to create risks at the enterprise level.
- If you use the RiskyProject add-in in Microsoft Project and the project does not exist in the RiskyProject database, it will automatically be created in RiskyProject regardless of user permissions.

## **Notification Manager**

In RiskyProject, you can configure emails which will be sent to users to notify them regarding the status of risks, changes in their properties and upcoming risk reviews. Who needs to receive messages, what those messages are and when they will be sent are all fully configurable by administrators.

RiskyProject can be executed using Windows Task Scheduler every 5 - 15 minutes without preventing user interface and can send out notification e-mails. Notifications can be configured using **Notification Manager**. Notification Manager is accessible from **Tools** -> **Notification Manager** or from **File** -> **Users** -> **Users Tab** -> **Notification Manager**. After notifications are configured, RiskyProject can read data from notification messages in the RiskyProject database and send them.

To execute RiskyProject using Windows Task Scheduler to send notification messages, it is recommended to install RiskyProject Professional, Lite, or Risk Register on the server. This installation can be done exactly the same way as on a client's computer. A dedicated user can be created to execute RiskyProject for notification messages. The user name and password for RiskyProject installed on the server will be encrypted and saved in the registry. When RiskyProject is executed by the Task Scheduler, no interface will be prevented and user name and password will not be asked. For more information about how to configure a Windows Task Scheduler, please read the *RiskyProject Enterprise Administrator's Guide*.



## **Configuring Notification Messages**

To start Notification Manager:

- 1. Go to Tools
- 2. Click on Notification Manager

Or

- 1. Go to File
- 2. Click on Users the User dialog will come up
- 3. Go to Users Tab
- 4. Click on Notification Manager

The Notification Messages tab allows you to configure individual messages. Double-click message ID to enter text for the message. You can use the buttons Risk, First Name, Last Name to substitute the message text with risk name and name of the message recipient.



You can define multiple risk review reminder messages if you you want to send reminders at different times, for example, one hour, one day or one week in advance.

## **Viewing Sent Notification E-mails**

You can view all notification event e-mails which have been sent using the **Notification Events** tab of **Notification Manager**. To copy, delete or view details of notification messages:

- 1. Right click on the message ID
- 2. Select copy, delete or view details of notification messages from the dropdown menu
- 3. If you select **View details**, you will be presented with a dialog which will include an error if a message was not sent.

You can click the **Sent** button if you wish to force sending notification messages without waiting for the execution of a scheduled process.

You can also limit the number of records of sent messages stored in the RiskyProject database. Each time the scheduled process to send messages is executed, it will delete the oldest messages.

### **Configuring E-mails**

You can configure how to send notification messages using the **Configure E-mail** tab of **Notification Manager**. This tab consists of two sections:

- 1. The upper section allows you to configure email server settings. It includes information about your e-mail server, port, encoding, etc. E-mail settings will be saved in the system registry.
- 2. The lower section allows to you send test e-mails to ensure that settings are correctly configured.